: oL RICHLAND COUNTY, S.C. HISTORICAL SUMMARY

The multiple resource nominatinn for the historic resources of Richland Ceunty, South
Carolinma, consists of thirty-two individual woperties and two districts-- one an
antebellum rice and cotton plantation; the other, an early 20th century railroad villaae
grouping of threce commercial buildingswm Tedewdn

The nomination expands recognition of significant historical values-- from colonial
settlerent to 1920-- of 631 square miles of idjacent rural aveas of the county outside
the municipal boundaries of the City of Colunshia, county seat and state capital. Previo
nominations for the city, which covers approcimately one-third nf the,coimty's area in
the western sector, included sixty-throe ind vidual properti. . and five districts (cor e
some 115 properties) which were listed from 971 through 1981,

As scant survivors of both vast Civil War de.truction and frequent accidental fires,
the small number of properties presented her: provides only a partial view of the overal
. historical, cultural and architectural devel pment of the capital city's rural surroundi-
.Civil War destruction of land and probate records further veils a clear perspective of
much of the area's 18th and early 19th centuy buildings. Scattered rccords recall
numerous 19th century grist and saw mills, p-ivate scheols ard academies, and ccuntrv
stores, now gone. Of some 600-800 white dwe.lings and more thar 1,000 slave cabins.
along with 18 churches listed in the county's outlying arcas in the 1860 census, some
ten dwellings-- with a few adjacent slave cabins-- and four churches remain from the
antebellum period intact enough to be cligih'e for Reqister nomination. They are all
included herein as important remnants of local illustrative hictory. Virtually no
sharecropper's dwellings remain in the count’ from the land tenancy period {ollowing
the Civil War until the 1940".. .

Sixty~six percent (21 properties) of the niminated buildings are dwellings. Diverse
~in"style and execution, but uniformly frame i nd clapboard, these residences exhibit *he
almost universal preference here for availab e and easily fashioned wood a5 a building
medium. They also depict the varying and chi nging life styles of the farmers and plante:
whose common attention to cotton cultivation from 1800 unti1 1930 united them in a sinal.

interdependent interest.

Eleven buildings (34 percent) are churche:, "mportant in the isolation of the rural soutt
~as much as historical benchmarks of crmnunity identity and as cherished social centers.
as for their individualistic architectural e:pressions af firaly hald spiritual values.

Properties herein nominated are dispersed wicely throuahout the county's nen urban area,
which today has a scattered population of 16¢7527, of which 102,659 are white and 63,346
black (1020 census). Almost half of ‘he arer is wondlands and farmlands. There ave

two rural municipdlities, both ¢moraing from late 19th century rail line stationc. The
county's only town in the northern pertien i< Blvtheudod, incorporated Cecemher 24, 1470,
and known formerly as "Doko," an Indian voed for "watering nTace.™ In the southeacters
area is Fastover, incorparated March 7, 1007, :

The remainder of the arca ccntaing widely coparated rural residenzes, a nurber of recent
high technology factorics, several laren pehVic and dinstitutional facilities, and 2 half,
dozen mining and quarrying cperations for aranite, crushed stene, sand, clay and kaolin,®
Public installaticns include Secouicent~anial and Harhison State Parks (3.600 acres
collectively), the United States Prmy Trainira Center at Fort Jackson (established in
1917 on $2,5%5 acres), and Mlntive 7iv Hatictal Guard Pase (2,300 acres), site of the
19th contury "Live Quk" plantation ani rvesiderare of Gavernor (1064-56) James Hopkins
Adams. A 15,700 acra tract in the conthre teon eprtae s estabiished as a natural
preservation area fep wiitdlife avd near vivniy coutb-rn fores?d in 1976 in the Conaaren
Swamp Latioml Park.3




,Atil the 1950's the entire unincorporated are. was almost exclusively undeveloped
woodiands and farm.. A number of large manufar turing and industrial plants have been
built, however, during the past decade. In 1930 the county ranked first statewide in
both industrial capital investment ($722 wnllion) and new job. (2,381). Industrial
employment opportunities are expected to more -han double by 1983 with the proposed
construction of eiqht new industries  for tie area.d The largect is 2 bleached paper
mill, the greatest private capital investment :0 date for the state, to be built by Union
Camp Corporation near Eastover on a former 3,810 acre cotton plantation tract lying along
the west bank of the Wateree River.

Located in the center of the state, Richland County is dominated by Columbia's role as
the chief hub of governmental, trade and educa .ional activity, as well as rail, highway
and afr transport systems. The county otherwi.e closely mirrors the state as a whnle
in both physical geography and historical deve opment: the upper portion generally
resembling the state's piedmont and Tower areca -- more the state's tidewater terrain.
The two are separated by a swath of fall line .and hills.

Rich alluvial lands in the southern part of th: county carly encouraged consolidation
of small colonial homesteads into large cotton plantations while the northern, or upper,
reaches of hilly sandlands remained small far . raising a variety of garden crops, corn

and some cotton. 5

Settlement of the area preceded by some forty ‘ears the establishment in 1785 of Columhia
as the seat of state government. The new capi-al replaced Charleston to promote politica!
balance between the “developing piedmont's swel'ing population of small farmers and the
less numerous but 1ong established and powerfu' tidewater planter aristocracy.

Said to have been named for the fertile soils jordering the county's four major rivers
and their numerous tributaries, the area was ii1itially settled in the 1740's. German
immigrants homesteaded the upper portion while Virginians made land claims in the lcwer
part. The chief occupations of both groups at first were trapping and raising cattle.’

Early settlement occurred along rivers and str2ams which provided the first transportation
routes between the backcountry wilderness and .harleston, Georgetown and Beaufort alona
the coast. Named for pre-colonial Indian trib:s, the Wateree River on the east and the
Congaree River on the southwest form important naviaable natural boundaries. The Broad
River comprises a portion of the northwest borfer. Within the county, and southeast

of the Broad, the Saluda River, also named for an aboriginal tribe, flows into the Broad
at Columbia to form the Congaree.8

Little is known of the area's aboriginal inhah:tants. Small bands of Congaree and Wateree
Indians, both of Siouan stock, still occupied *hat is now Richland Count% until the 1740'¢
with occasional incursions of Cherokees and Ir)quois through the 1760's.” The first

trade center for the entire central portion of South Carolina was the establishment of

a garrisoned trading post in 1716 (abandoned i1 1722 ant reestablished in 1748) west

of the Congaree River in present -Lexington County.10 That outpost extended into Saxe
Gotha District in 1736 as one of eleven townships laid out by the royal government to
induce foreign settlement in the backcouritry a. a line of defense to protect Charleston
from Indian attacks.l1l

It was not until 1785 that Richland became an dentifiable administrative unit resembling
today's county. In that year it was one of se'en counties designated within the Camden
District. That district, one of <even judicia® districts established by the General
Assembly under royal rule in 1769, had previou.ly been a part of Craven County under the
proprietary qgovernment's division of the whole colony into only three counties. By 1804
judicial districts roughly followed todav's cointy boundaries but it was not until 1865
that counties as such became permnent ~dminis:rative jurisdictions.l12




. Homestead settlement in the county began in the .740's along the east banks of the Broad
and Congaree Rivers and their tributaries. The “irst 300 settlers included about a dozen
German families along the Broad.13 The remainde- were predominantly Virginians who brought
claves with them and settled weot of tho Wateree and ecast of the Congaree.l4 During

the Revolutionary War, both groupi furnished men to the patriot cause, but no military
engagements occurred in the area.’”’ By 1790, th: county had a pnpulation of 3,950, of
which 1,437 were slaves. 16 After 1800 the slave population continucusly exceeded the
white and by 1860 was 63 percent of the county's total popnlaticn of 18,307. The county's
total population remained more than 60 percent black following the Civil War until 1920
when the 1917 establishment of the Fort Jackson 1.S. Army Camp at Columbia increased

the white population to 54 percent.!7

The introduction of the cotton gin in 1799 by Wafe Hampton 1 (1751-1835)-transformed the
county's land ownership, population and economic pattern. After 1800 the area of relativel.
small white farmers between the Wateree and Congiree turned from indi?o as a cash crov to t
cultivation of cotton on large plantations workel by numerous <’aves.18 Small farms rewin
the rule in the upper county, where cotton, arait and foodstuffs were grown.?

Few extant records recite social, cducatioral anl religious opportunities of the colonial
and antebellum periods. Between 16 and GO, men vere required to assemble at stated time:
for mandatory state militia musterings at variou: places, where favorite snorts of horae
racing._gamiga and shooting matches appear to hase lessened the rigors of military
obligations.

Early settlers were largely without ecclesiasticil direction. A German Reformed branch
of the Presbyterian Church, known as the Appii Forum Church, was founded on Cedar Creek
in Upper Richland County about 1761. Known locally as DuBard's Church, it became Methndist
after the 1791 visit by Frances Asbury. The present 1910 Cedar Creck Methodist Church
is the fourth on or near the previous church sit2s of this congregation. .In the lower
county, Congaree Baptist Church was organized November 30, 1765, with 33 members. By
1772 Congaree Baptist had four branches. Numerois subsequent ones established this
church as mother of Baptist Churches in central South Carolina. Richland County
branches included Sandy Level Baptist Church (orjanized ahout 1785 near Blythewood) .
Colonel's Creek Baptist (ca. 1800), Beulah Churcn (1805),¢1 and Good Hope Baptist Church
(dismission from Congaree, 1866).22 Congarec, Saidy level -and Gond Hope remain in
antebellum structures. Beulah is a modern cdifize. A Raptist Meeting House built by
Lower Richland planter Joel Adams, I+ (1750-1830) appears on the 1826 Mills’ Atlas of

the county.23 [t provided the name to onc of Adans' plantations.

The first Episcopal services in the rural county were in a slave chapel built west of

the Wateree on Middleburg Plantation by William Slarkson in 1820. Said to have been

the first church erected in the state for the ex:lusive religious instructicn cf blacks,
the chapel, used to organize Zion Epiccopal Churih in 1835 by a few white families,
burned in 1945. A new Zion Church was built in 1844 for the planter communicants at

the northwest quadrant of U.S. Highways 378 and 301. The 1911 present chyreh in Eastover
replaces an earlier 1884 edifice and is the fourth for 7ion COHU“Fﬂ“LiO“-(

In 1859 SL. John's Episcopal Church, Congarce, wis built on property donated by planter-
physician Dr. Hilliam Weston adjacent tn the Wecton famiiy cemetery. Governor James
H. Adams and Paul G. Chappel were elected wardens.t”  The church hurned December 26, 1981.

Post hellum churches for Lower Richland were tha 1071 St. Thomis Fpiscopal Churchy which
started an a plantation schosl for slave children, tha 1894 |ower Pichland Presbyterian

Church near fideden, the 01d Hopking Prechyteriay Church, built an IQ?7 for a Methodist

condreaation and the 1910 Lagnn Memarial taptset Chureh in Fastover, <Y
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In addition to Cedar Creek Methodist and Sandy level Churches, already cited, older
churches in Upper Richland include the 1905 0Oak Grove United Methodist and 1898-1924
Beulah Methodist Churches in the Cedar Creek arca, the ca 1894 Mt. Pleasant Mothodist
Church, Campground area, the 1905 St. Andrews Litheran Church and the 1892 Bethel
Baptist Church, Blythewood.

Nothing remains of early schools in the rural ccunty. These included one taught by
William Claibourne Clifton near Hopkins from 17¢0-1794 when he moved to Columbia; the
Minervaville Society Academy, which fostered thc hamlet of Minervaville from 1802-1834
near Hopkins; the Mill Creek School, gtarted as a church and school by Mrs. William
Goodwyn, which operated through 1887;28 and the Palmetto Academy. The cg. 5330 farmhouse
dwelling of the Palmetto Academy headmaster still stands and is unoccupied. Existent
receipts among family papers record that several of the planters employed tutors for
their children. :

Mist of the schools in the county established after the 1811 enactment of state of the
free school system were private academies or pTzntatioH schools because the free schools
carried a pauper stigma which offended even the poor.3" Private academies continued

to be the preference of the wealthy and middle (lass whites long after establishment
under the Reconitruction government in 1876 of*thec beaginning of the state's public
schoo'l'system.3 Two notable private academies operated in the county. The Blythewood
Female Institute, first called the "Belle Haven' School in Columbia, was operated by
the Rev. John Zealy, a Baptist minister, hefore remnval to Doko (Blythewood). There,
under Principal Dr. S: W. Bookhart, it proy;ded English, music, painting and French
classes for young ladies until after 1866.32 Nearer Columhia was the Barhamville
Institute, (South Carolina Female Collegiate In:titute), which was onerated from 1828-
1861 by Dr. Elias Marks agg from 1861-1865 by M dame Josef S. Sosnowski. The campus
buildings burned in 1869.

By 1883 there were 56 public schools in the county with enrollments of 980 white students
and 2,728 black students attending separate fac lities in school sessions lasting less
than four gsnths. Of the 56 school buildings, only 30 were then owned by the school
districts. .

Numerous rural elementary schools gaverned by a multitude of local school boards served
the area until 1950 whgg reorganization effectec consolidation into two school districts
for the entire county. Blythewood and Low:r Fichland (formerly called the Consolidated
High School) thereafter were the only high schoi:1s operating in the rural county. Only
two buildings connected with the post belium anc early 20th century public schools survive.
These are the Eastover school principal's house and later teacherage - built in 1910

as a graded school and now in an unqgcupied, de’apidated state - and the Hopkins school

teacherage, now a community center.”

By 1865 the area was served by five post office:, two in-the upper portion and three
in Lower Richland. Postmasters were: for Cedar Creek, S.A. Proctor; Doko, G. P. Hoggman:
Gadsden, W. B. Flowers; Hopkins Turnout, J. 5. (alligan and Waterce, M. D. Jenkins.

Dense woodlands and numerous water courses and édjoining swamps impeded both travel and
transportation of goods until well inte the 10tt century. The first public roads followed
earlier Indian trading paths and included the McCord's Ferry Road (1766) from abave the
confluence of the Congaree and Waterce Rivers, rorth along the west side of the Wateree

to above Camdnn and another 17€6 rrad Teading tc the fork of the Catawba River from
Howell's Ferry on the Congaree Rivor. Tn 1778 c¢ther public roads were the "North Carolina”
road northeast of present Columbia. the Camden foad and Bluff Road, a route connecting

(4)




| Fridaj's Ferry below Columbia and McCord's Ferry along high ground roughly paralleling

the Congarce River.38 By 1820 the entire district was CPiSSCE?ﬂSﬂd with roads cornecting
farms and plantations with each other and main travel routes. )

Ferries before 1800 were operated on the Broad Fiver by John Compty; on the Congaree

by Thomas Howell, William Howell, Isaac Huger, .ames Myrick, Martin Friday (later Richard
and Wade Hampton); Joseph Joyner (later John Mc(ord, then Grace Russell. Before 1783
ferries were maintained on the Wateree by _ _James, Revolutionary General Thomas
Sumter and Col. Fowler Brisbane. By 1825 Brlsbene's Ferry was operated by Pressley
Garner and operated by Garner's slave Dembo. 0 :

The first bridges for the.area were built in 17¢!1 by Wade Hampton at his ferry site on

the Congareec and by John Compty at his ferry site on the Broad River. When floods
dastroyed these bridges before their completion only the Hampton bridge was rebuilt.?]

By 1820 both the Congaree and Broad Rivers were still scrved by two ferries each, accordinc
to Robert Mills' Atlas of the district.

Cumbersome and lengthy river and overland shipment of cotton and freight was replaced

by rail transportation in 1842 with the extension of the South Carolina Railroad from
Charleston through Lower Richland to Columbia. The line give rise to the hamlets of
Gadsden, Kingville and Hopkins, all of which disappeared with the decline of cotton before
1930. Construction in 1871 of the Wilmington, toluwbia and Auqusta Railroad (later the
Seaboard Coastline), parallel to and above Rﬂe ‘842 1ine, linked the lower fork to further
markets and generated the town of Eastover.”” “The town of Blythewnod in upper Richland
sprang from the watering stop for trains at Dokn when the Charlotte and South Carolina
Railroad line was built in 1851-52.%

From 1800 until the late 1920's, "upland" or short staple cotton production provided
the county's economic base. King Cotton was being dethroned by cheaper foreign prices,
bad seasons and the unrelenting damage by the byT1 weevil from its entry into the State
in 1917. But corn, continuously in second plac: in both acreage and money value, was
easily grown on both sand lands and river bottons durinqg the county's 294 crop growing
days. The county's corn production included a vorld's record in 1857 by Dv. J. W. Parker,
Superintendent of the State Hospital for the Insane, who gathered 359 bushels of corn
on two acres-on a tract six miles north of Colunbia.46 Always overshadowed by cotton
in acreage and yield, corn nonetheless played a1 important part in agricultural planning
by the county's farmeri and planters and in the state as a chief source of food for beth
people and lTivestock.*’ The Federal Agriculturil Census' of 1850 and 1860 reveal that
Indian corn far exceeded the production of othe+ staple crops such as wheat, oats, rice,
peas and beans and sweet potatoes and averaaed Zyom 2,500 to 12,000 bushels per p1anf§rinn
among the county's 36 largest planters who indisidually owned more than 1,500 acres. 4t

Although inferior to many other counties in the state in both slave population and cotton
production, the history of rural Richland County was essentially the story o7 cotton and
the "weal and woe" that accompanied good crops 2s well as drouahts, competition with the
0ld southwest and fluctuating prices from 5¢ in 1845 to $1.01 a pound in 1864. OQther sub-
stantial impacts were caterpillar ravazes in 1621, 1845, 1065-78, 1881, 1884, crippling
Reconstruction federal taxes of 24¢ a pound (1656-68), adjustments to the postwar share-
cropping system and, finally, the development in 1869 of <oil renewing phosphate heds rear
Charleston.49 Low prices occurred in the 1870's and in 1894, followed by a devastatinag pl
again to 5¢ a pound in 1897-22, with no real inorovement above 10-12¢ cotton until 1914.
The establishment in Columbia between 1894 and 1900 of Targe cotton mills to absorb local
yields, along with the construction there in 1637 of cempressing and storage facilities--
and rallying prices after World War T -- assurcd cotton's agricultwral supremacy in the co

through 1927.50
(%)




Of the homes of the great planter« identified i1 the 1850 and 1960 census, only six have
survived destruction in the Civil War or by later accidental fires. They are the Hophkin
family's "Alwehav," "Cabin Branch,” and "Magnolia" or "Wavering Place,” the Sinqletons'
"Kensington," the Westons' "Grovewnod" and the \dams' "Bellaire.”

An analysis of the 1860 general and agricultural censuses reveals that none called themsel:
planters except for Mrs. Keziah G. H. Brevard, )r. Duncan Ray and Gov. James H. Adams. The
rema jnder listed themselves as “"farmers." Other data emerging from the census and family
records were that most of the Lower Richland plinter: were of Virginia extraction, third
or fourth generation planters on the same land ind middle-aged, with Frank Hampton the
youngest at 31 and Mary Goodwyn Adams the oldest at 71.

As a group, the Lower Richland planters account:d for more than half of the county's wealth
in 1860, - the cumulative cash value of their faris amounting to 56% of the county's entire
farm valuation of $2,100,825, which represented almost half of the county's total real
property value of $5 million. Of the county's total property valuation, real and personel.
of $20,263,000, Lower Richland Countv slaves ac:ounted for almost $15 million. The total
valuation figure included property in CoTumbla, the state's capital.

As a group their real property (cash value ‘of farmf) averaged $45,000-$50,000, with persocn.
property (primarily slaves)-almost always tripling real cstate values. Plantat1on size
averaged some 3,000 acres, w1th one-third to on:-half of this amount usuaTly under cultiva®

0f the 1,395 households in the county, the planters ‘represented an extremely small number
among thn 6,800 whites. But their slaves accouated for the majority of 11,000 blacks
enumerated in the 1860 census.

The accompanying 1860 agricultural census shows that the planters practiced a notable degr:
of diversified farming and did not operate thei- plantations as single commodity enterprisc
with cotton the exclusive crop. Cotton vields For 1860 among the plantations generally
exceeded 200 bales per plantation, ranging from 100 for Mrs. Grace Adams Davis to 600 for
James U. Adams. Large numbers of livestock, swine and foodstuffs for each plantation suag
a high degree of para]lel subs1stence farming t> support the numerous slaves working the
cotton fields.

Appearing as the most diversified plantation is "Kensington," being operated by Mrs. Marth.
Rutledge Kinloch Singleton, widow of Matthew Richard Singleton, with 2,800 of 6,600 acres
under cultivation in producing 350 bales of cotton, 10,000 bushels of Indian corn, 300
pounds of rice, 300 bushels Irish and 250 bushels sweet potatoes, as well as hay, wheat,
rye and oats and 500 pigs, 50 milk cows, 200 be3f cattle, and 200 sheep. An 1857 plat rect
40 slave cabins and 13 outbuildings on the projerty. The slave population for 1850 was
276 and 235 in 1852, according to Col. Richard Singleton's estate inventory.

More than 30% of the county's 8,600 pounds of rice-- both upland and flooded, lowland rice-
was raised in Lower Richland by the Singletons ind others, including J.H. Adams, Keziah
Brevard, Jesse Reese, Jacob Geiger and Edward Birnwell Rhett, whose “Goodwill" Plantation
west of the Wateree produced 154 bales of cotton in addition to lowland rice on a slave
construgted f]ooded rice field system that diverted two miles of Colonel's Creek over 200
acres.

Home manufactory to supply hnusoho]d items and slave c]othlng needs from spinning and
weaving was reported by all but eight of the large planters in the 1860 census.. The 1860

. Industrial Census for the county is partially illeaible for several entries but does list
in manufacturing: individual water and grist nille operated by Jacob Geiger and John Camph
grist mills for Grace W. Adam., the Sinqleton F.tate and Richard S1ngleton a pottery for
Linnaeus Landrum and a cotton gin for Juhn P. Adams.

(6.)
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Although cotton culture pervaded the entire arca's economic life until 50 years aqgo, it was
in Lower Richland that history and cotton were inextricably enmeshed.  Here, comfortably
settled on vast estates dwelled the storied "great landed aristiocracy...that...waged one

of the most desperate and disastrous wars of moderr times and failing, lost the accumulated
wealth of a century and a half, "ol

Extensive land and slave ownership distinguished tlte wealthy cotton planters. Foremost among
the Lower Richland planters in 1850 were the Singleton and Adams families. Colonel Richard
Singleton (1776-1852), whose "Home Place" lay in acjoining Sumter County and who held more
property in neighboring Calhoun County, also owned six plantations in’ the eastern part of
Lower Richland which totaled more than 18,000 acrc¢. He, along with sons John Coles Singleton
(1813-1852) of "Albemarle" Plantation and Matthew Fichard Singleton (1817-1854) of "Headyuar-
ters" or "Kensington" Plantation, and a trust for tis grandson, Richard R. Singleton, together
enumerated 1,021 slaves in the county. These vast land holdings were not owned by the sons,
but instead were bequeathed by Colonel Singleton tc the eldest sons of his children. The
largest and most productive of the Singleton plant:tions was the 4,400 acre "Fensington,”
valued at $50,000 with 276 slaves in 1850 and $100,000 and no slaves Tisted in 1860.52

In the area's western sector brothers Robert Adams. Sr. (1793-1850) and Joel Adams, Jr. (1784-
1859), along with their nephews James U. Adams.(18 2-1871): Joel R. Adams (d.1859) and Jamex
Hopkins Adams (1812-1861, S.C. Governor 1854-56) ccllectively owned more than 17,500 acres

and 806 slaves in 1850. The Adams, with their Weston and Hopkins relatives were the ‘laragest
landowners in the county.at the time of the Civil lar.53

Other owners of more than 100 slaves in 1850 inclured Wade Hampton [I1, 308; Mrs. Keziah
Goodwyn Hopkins Brevard, 180; William Hopkins, 147 William M. Myers, 139; William Clarkson,
190; Carolina G. Weston, 235; Thomas B. Clarkson, ' 34; Joseph A. Black, 154; Jesse DeEruhl,
140; Benjamin Taylor, 178; John D. Frost, 145; Ale>ander Taylor, 149; and Sarah Taylor,
212.54 Except for Black, DeBruhl, Frost, and the laylors, all planted in the fork between
the Congaree and Wateree Rivers. :

Of the 20 great planters in the county in 1860 idertified in Chalmers Davidson's The Last Foray
as having 100 or more slaves within the county, 15 were in the Lower Richland Fork. UOf these,
five were women, all widows. The planters and the names of their residences were Gov. James
H. Adams, "Live Oaks," 500 slaves; Mrs. Mary Goodwyn Hopkins Adams, widow of Joel Adams,

Jr., "Elm Savannah," 273. Mrs. Keziah Goodwyn Hop} ins Brevard, widow of Major Alex Joseph
McLeod Brevard, but whose wealth was inherited fror: her father James Hopkins, lived at
“Alwehav" and five other plantations, with 279 slaves. Others were Colonel Thomas Boston
Clarkson, "Middleberg," 170; William Clarkcon Esta e, "The Raft," 211; Mrs. Grace Weston
Adams, "Meeting House" Plantation and “Rives,” 114 . Thomas Roots Davis, "Green Hill," 106.

A Columbia building contractor, Davis did not Tive on his plantation.

In addition were William M. Myers, "Fort Marion," :44; Dr. Duncan Ray (plantation unnamed) ,
110; Joseph E. Reese, "Woodlawn Place," 110; John (oles Singleton Estate, "Alhemarle," 328;
Lieuellon Woodward. “The Oaks," 168; Captain lsaac Tucker Weston, "The Bluff" and “Drx'ﬂranch
Place," 153; and Moultrie Weston (plantation unnamid), 100.°Y Omitted from the Foray list

is James !. Adams, whom the 1860 slave schedule 1i:ts as having 309 slaves.

Also in the area, but not qenera11% thought of as ¢ Lower Richland planter, was Frank
Hampton, "Woodlands," 210 slaves.®® |lis brothe-, Yade Hampton III, is not among the great
planters since he had moved slaves and planter act’vities to Louisiana. Great planters in
Upper Richland were Wright Denley, "Piney Wood", 114 slaves; John Davis Frost, "Cherry Hill,"
146; and Hilliard D. Mamiter, "Saxe Gotha," 122.% Mrs. Sally Webb Taylor, listed with

123 slaves, and Mrs. Lucy Pride Green, with 101 <lcves, 98 were planting outside the county:
Mrs. Taylor in Lexington County and Mo, Creen in Alabama.

(7-)
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As a ‘group the planters appear 1o have been we 1 educated as well as accomplished in
scientific and practical agriculture. The majerity were graduates of the South Carolina
College, with Harvard, Yale and the University of Virginia alsu represented. Except for
Governor James Hopkins Adams and William M. My:rs, who served in the state legislature, nu
held public officgo although several rendered jblic service as trustees of the state col!
or insdne asylum. ’

The county was particularly stricken by the Ci/il War, but precise property losses are dif
cult to calculate. Extensive looting by Union soldiers occurred throughout the area,
according to both written and oral accounts. '

The turbulence of the war was followed by dramatic shifting of fortunes and adjustments in
agriculture and land ownership patterns. Shar.cropping hy contract Tabor with the freed
slaves, necessitated by the absence of ready mney and the empTyyment of agricultural labe:
turned naturally to the reestablishment of cot:on cultivation.b

The accompanying breaking up of the large plan:ations was accelerated by the Reconstructio:
dovernment's 1869-1890 land redistribution projram to provide farms and homesteads for lan
whites and the freed slaves.62 Of the 29 coun:ies in the state in which the state land cc

. sion purchased tracts for its redistribution s’/stem, Richland County ranked third in the
number of acres (9,398; acquired and was exceded only by Charleston (25,501 acres) and
Colleton (12,894 acres Cg%nties.53 Six tract:, all in Lower Richland, were purchased and
platted into 297 parcels. The Hunt and Back Swamp tracts, totaling 1,000 acres, lay in
swampland along the Congaree Swamp. Only the lopkins tract (4] parcels at Hopkins Turnout®

_ the Adams tract (8 parcels north of Cedar Crece:) and the Hickory Hill tract (41 parcels
southeast of Eastover) appear to have been hom:steaded. Many of the Richland purchasers
apparently forfeited their land under the time payment plan required. Of the 108 holders -
of deeds of purchagg in 1872 on the Hopkins ani{ O'Hanlan tracts, only 64 were still in
residence in 1880. Current tax maps of the lopkins community reveal that present parcel
are little changed from the 1872 freedmen's® settlement. plat. The only freedmen's home
remaining ‘in the county from the settlement pe-iod ‘is the expanded 1879 house of Samuel an
Harriet Barber on the Hopkins tract.

Of the large antebellum plantations, only the jingletons' "Kensington," now 3,800 acres,
and the Heywards' "Goodwill" with 3,288 acres -etain appreciable amounts of their original
acreage.

By 1883 the county boasted seven towns and traling settlements with a combined business co
munity of 169 stores: Columbia, 154; Eastover and Gadsden, five each; Kingville and Acton
one each; and Shand's, two.56 The town of Bly:hewood, which remained in Fairfield County

until 1913, had three stores in 1883.67

The construction in 1890 of the Columbia, Newb:rry and Laurens Railroad nortlwest of Columt
gave rise to the hamlet of White Rock.6® The -ail line, referred to locally as the “Crook:
‘Noisy and Late" railroad, ran through the hear: of a 14 squarc mile area between the Broad
and Saluda Rivers, known historically as the ")utch Fork" and annexed from Lexington Count.:
to Richland County March 11, 1922.69 Settled in the 1730's and 40's by Swiss and Germans,
the "Deutsch" Fork developed slowly, isclated in part by the rivers and by cultural and lar
guage barriers. There, ethnic differences and the Fork's poor quality of soil produced a
small farmer society with few slaves.’" Chara:terized as "sturdy, thrifty and industrious”
-and of “approximately the same cultural and so:ial level as their English, Scotch-Irish an-
French Huguenot contemporaries,"/l the German settlers were slow to amalgamate with other:
and tended to intermarry with their neighbors. Before 1800 many of the Fork Germans were
in the Upper Richland area along Ceder Creck. German names «till prevalent in the Dutch
Fork fnclude Eleazer, Slice, Lindler, Busby, Filmer, Bundrick, Miller (Muller), Setzler,
Lorick, Mayer, Amick, Wisn, Harmon, Dreher, Merze, and Leaphart.

(&) .
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Rapid residential and commercial development. in the lower Fork haec resulted in the last [
years from the construction of Inter<talo Highway 1-26 and major industrial plants by Genn
Electric and Allied Chemical.

While much of the county still remains undevelored woodlands and fields, manufacturing and
government, followed by finance, insurance and real estate, have replaced agriculture in
terms of employment.

With the introduction of soybean planting in 19%0, agricultural emphasis turned away from
cotton. 'In 1980 only 800 acres of cotton were crown compargd to 723,200 acres of soybeans.
5,800 acres of corn and 3,600 acres of coastal Fermuda hay. 3 Farms and” farm sizes contint
to diminish as the high costs of farm machinery and production exacerbate farm losses in
sequel to the dramatic shift that the break up cf the plantations and change in labor systr
after 1860 wrought in reducing the average farm in the state from 488 acres to 65 by 1977.
Latest census figures record 356.farms in the ccunty with average farm size being 219 acrr

Activities to preserve important historic and ci1tural values of the area began aTmost 5C
years ago with the publication in 1932 of Volumc One of A History of Richland County, 1722-
1805 by Edwin L. Green. Containing abstracts of extant wills from 1747-1864 as well as 1i-
of grantees of colonial land bounties, the book also includes sketches of pioneer familie-
and is the only published history to date of the county. Also important in providing decu-
mented data on local history was the 1976 publication of Lower Richland Planters by Laura
Jervey Hopkins. -

As part of the City of Co]umgga‘s Sesquicentenn-al observance, 13 historical markers were
erected in the area in 1938. -These weroe:

HORRELL HILL MARKER. U.S. Route 76. Horre' 1 Hi1l, 13 miles east of Columbia.

Three hundred yards north is the site of the Richland County Court
House built about 1794; abandoned wher counily courts were abolished
1798. Corn was ground in 1781 for Suriter's army at John Marshall's
Mill, on Cedar Creek, 3/4 mile east. There has been a mill on this
creek since the Revolution.

HOPKINS MARKER. 12.7 miles from Columbia tetween S.C. 48 and U.S. 76.

Land granted to John Hopkins 1765G. Minerva Academy located here
1802-34. 0ld plantations nearby: Catin Branch (Hopkins, Chappell);
Elm-Savannah (Adams); Live Oak (Gov. (. H. Adams); Greenfield
(Goodwyn, Howell); Wavering Place (Tucker, Hopkins, Hayne); Grovewood
(Weston).

GADSDEN MARKER. S.C. 48, 21 miles east of Columbia:

Names in honor of James Gadsden, Pres-dent of the Louisville,
Cincinnati and Charleston Railroad. Station built here 1840
was the first railroad station in Riclland County. A stage line
was operated to Columbia until 1847 ard to Camden until 1848.

EARLY SUMMER RESORTS. U.S. 1, Dentsville.

Lightwood Knot Springs, situated aboul two miles north, a popular
summer resort during first half of nireteenth century, was later
Confederate training camp for recruite. A fow miles east was Rice
Creek Springs, another early summer resort and site of Richland
Polytechnic Institute, 1830-1844%.

(7.)



SOUTH CAROLINA FEMALE COLLEGIATE INSTITUTE. Twe Notch Road, ncar Covenant Road, Columbi-

At Barhamville, about 1/2 mile west of this point, a famous qirls’
school, founded by Dr. Elias Marks (179C-1886), was located 1828-65.
Among the students were Anna Maria, dauchter of John C. Calhoun; Ann
Pamela Cuningham, founder of Mt. Vernon Ladies' Association; Harthd
Bulloch, mother of President Theodore Rcosevelt.

EARLY COUNTRY HOMES. Corner of Forest Drive ind Beltline Boulevard, Columbia.

In this malaria-free sandhill section were the antebellum summer,
homes of many Colymbians: Quinine Hill (Dr. J. M. Taylor, Dr. James
Davis); Hilltop (W. J. Taylor); Edgehill (B. F. Tavlor): Laurel Hill
(D. J. McCord); Cooper's Hill (Thomas Ccoper); Windy Hill (Langdon
Cheves); Rose Hill (Arthur Middleton); [iamond Hill (Singleton,
McDuffie, Hampton).

FISHER'S MILL ON GILL CREEK. Forest Drive, ¢bout 100 yards east of Trenholm Road,
Columbia.

" About 1800, Col. Thomas Taylor erected the small building, 1/4 mile
upstream, where cotton goods were woven for his plantation needs.
Here John and Edward Fisher later established one of the earliest -
spinning mi11% in Richland County, using s1ave labor and manufac-
turing cotton yarn.

EARLY RICHLAND COUNTY SETTLEMENTS. B]uff Rocd (S:C. 48) at its bridge over Mill Creek,
south of Columbia.

. *First settlements made about 1740 on th s creek, originally called
Raiford's now Mill Creek. Howell's Ferry across Congaree River
below creek's mouth was used 1756 throuch the Revolution. John
Pearson (1743-1819) born near here was 1irst known white child born
in bounds of present county.

WATEREE RIVER FERRIES. U.S. 76/378 at Richlend-Sumter County line, 23 miles east of
Columbia.

River took its name from Wateree Indian:, a Siouan Tribe which
occupied the valley until about 1715. tear this site was Simmons'
Upper Ferry used during the Revolution; later called Brisbanes, then
Garner Ferry. Used until bridge compleind 1922.

ANTEBELLUM PLANTATIOMNS. Intersection of U.S. 76 and S.C. 764, east of Columbia.

Among the early Richland County plantations between the Wateree River
and Columbia were: Deer Pond and Kensirgton (Singleton); Goodwill
{Huger, Hayward); Nut Shell (Bynum, Heyward); the Raft and Middleburg
(Clarkson).

CONGAREE BAPTIST CHURCH. At Horrell Hill on U.S. 76.

A few miles south was the site of origiral Congaree Baptist Church,
orqanized 1766 with the Rev. Joseph Reece as pastor. Probably first
church in bounds of present Richland Cotnty. Since 1800 located on
Tom's Creek, 22 miles south of Columbia.



WOODLANDS AND MILLWOOD. 100 Hampton Place, just of f Garner's Ferry Road, Columbia.

One and a half miles south was Woodlancs, built before 1800 by
Wade Hampton, I (1752-1835), folonel i1 Revolution, Major General
in War of 1812. 1/4 mile north was Mi Iwood, built before 1820
by Wade Hampton, IT (1791-1858), aide .0 Gen. Jackson, War of
1812. Boyhood Home of Wade Hampton, I 1 (1818-1902), Licutenant
General, C.S.A.; Governor of South Carclina 1876-79. Union
troops burned both houses 1865. .

CAMP JACKSON. Corner of Wildcat and Garner s Ferry Roads, Columbia.

Named in honor of Gen. Andrew Jackson. This cantonment site 1 1/2
miles north was approved by the war dejartment June 2, 1917.
Maximum strength was recorded in June 1918: 3,302 officers;
45,402 men. 8lst Division was trained here August 29, 1917-

May 18, 1918; the 5th Division stationcd here October 20, 1920-
October 4, 1921. Made a training camp for national guard 1925.

Several of these markers have been replaced. On'y two new markers have been erected in the
rural county since 1938. These are: ’

GRAVE OF JOSEPH REESE. U.S. 76 at S-40-222 10 miles east of Columbia.

Joseph Reese, pioneer Baptist minister and Revolutionary patriot
who died in 1795, is buried 2 mi. SW o‘ here. Born in Pennsylvania,

~ he came to the Congarees in 1745, becare a Baptist as a result of
Philip Mulkey's preaching and was osda ned by Oliver Hart and Evan
Pugh. Reese won Richard Furman to the Baptists and was the first
pastor of Congaree Baptist Church. (Evected 1976 by the S.C.
Baptist Historical Society.) .

RICHLAND PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH. County Road . 314.

This church building was dedicated in tay, 1884, by Dr. John L.
Girardeau. The congregation of 11 memters, including ? elders

and 1 deacon, was organized on the Sabtath Day, November 16, 1884,
by the Charleston Presbytery. 1In 1914. the church became a charter
member of Congaree Presbytery, moving g Eastover in August, 1922.
(Erected 1980 by the congregation.)

»

The organization in the late 1950's of the Richlind County Histerical Society renewed intere-
in local histori¢ preservation. And although thr society was unsuccessful in efforts in 196
to save "Kensington," vacant and deteriorating s-nce 1940, those efforts did lead to the
listing by the State Archives Department of the jroperty in 1971 on the National Register.

It remains to date the only Regicter entry in the rural county. In 1980 these efforts were
carried further by the Central Midlands Regional Planning Council's (CMRPC) Regional Historic
Preservation Advisory Committee and the Archives Department in arranging for measured drawinc
to be made of the house. In May, 1981, Union Canp Corporation purchased the property, immedi
ately secured the house from further weather dam:ge and vandalism and agreed to preserve the
29 room, thriee storey dwelling, in culmination o! a year of coordination and cooperative
planning with state and local historical intercsis in joint recognition of the house's
exceptional historical and architectural siqnificance.
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The society also sponsored a tour of historic si:es of Lower Richland in 1971, based on a
survey by Mrs. Mabel Payne and Dr. William Seale The tour followed a highly successful
project in 1969 in reprinting of E. J. Scott's 1384 Random Recollections.

An initial historical survey of the area was conlucted in 1972-73 by the CMRPC and State
Archives Department with a more comprehensive on: concluded in 1980. Survey findings are
described in the.following methodology narrative.

Primary preservation achievement has been by the private owners of ‘individual properties.
Continuous family ownership of many of the older dwellings has assured the maintenance and
upkeep of these properties. In appreciation of their preservation stewardship, the Historic
Columbia Foundation, in special ceremonies in Mas, 1981, in which the County Historical Soc:
merged with the Foundation, awarded citations to the owners of the Kaminer House, "Grovewoo!
St. Thomas Episcopal Church and St. John's Episcipal Church, Congarec.

And as a result of the comprehensive historical .urvey, the Richland County Bicentennial
Commission, with Richland County Council, awarde! landmark plaques and certificates Septembe
19 and 20, 1981, to 50 properties in the rural . ea as the best surviving representatives

of buildings-- from colonial settlement to 1930- - depicting the county's overall historical
development. The plaque presentation expanded a designation program for the City of Colunb-
in 1979 when 100 buildings there were marked. It also represented the first time that offic
recogrition, through co-sponsorship of the Count/ Council, was extended to historic propert:
in the county's rural areas. -

Properties, honored in the September award brogrim, which meet the National Register criteri
for listing are included in this nomination.

</>'f*/)



Survey Methodoloqy

This nomination is the product of a comprehensive historical survey of 115 buildings conduc’
between June, 1980, and June, 1981, by Nancy Fo», Historic Preservation Planner for Central
Midlands Reginnal Planning Council. Assisting curing the summer of 1980 was Chris Kolbe,
historic preservation graduate student and intern. The goal of the survey was to assess
for preservation. potential and Register listing all properties in the study area meriting
recognition as historical, cultural or architectural resources through 1) updating and
expanding an earlier 1974 survey for the area ir which thirty-eight properties had been
identified for inclusion in the statewide inventory; 2) locating , evaluating, recording
and mapping all surface properties to establish a reliable resource data base for state and
local planning efforts; and 3) compiling a <upportive backup of documented information on
local history where little or none existed, because of the loss of courthouse and private
records during the Civil War. The loss of antetellum land and probate records prevents
compilation of detailed information for both gereral history and specific buildings.

Supplementing the field survey, which identifiec 77 previously unrecorded properties, were
archival and library research, interviews with.local historians and property owners, county
land and tax record research and extensive examination of the Federal 1850 and 1860 General
and Agricultural Censuses and Slave Schedules. Other resources consulted included newspape:
published histories, biographical works, publisted genealogies, historic hdéuse data, cotton
production statistics and family manuscript collectlons

Criteria utilized in both the qual1fy1ng survey and in development of the National Register
nomination included: .

1. evidence of historical, and/or cultural associative values.

v

2. architectural merit.
3. architectural incidence in the communvty
4, effect of alterations and impairment c¢f original fabric.

Data collection procedures included:
1. delineation of five identifiable sub-county "neighborhoods" as study areas for
detailed field study of all properties 50 years or older.

2. identification of buildings by style, wner, date, and location on individual
survey forms and tax maps.

3. recording of individual buildings and eligible districts W1th photographs,
architectural descriptions and site p]an sketches, where needed.

4. Simultaneous archival and other resear:h to authenticate oral claims and
establich a basis for understanding th2 area's development.

5. evaluation of buildings in districts 19 dotermire clas.ification as pivotal,
- contributing, or noncontributing.

6. mapping of properties in districts to illustrate the distribution of pivotal,
contributing and noncontributing categories.
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